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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Leander, Texas

Opìnìons .
.:

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly; in all material respects, the respective financfal
position of the governmental activities, the business-tlpe activities, each major fund, and the aggt"gute remaining fund
information of the City of Leaflder, Texas, as of September 30,2013, and the respective changes in financial'position, aird,
where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the general fund and traffic irnpact
analysis furrd for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
Anerica. :

Repbrt on the Financial Statements

ItIy'e have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the businesqt¡pe activities,reach ,

major fund, and the uggr"gi" t"*ãioiog fund information of-the-City of Leander, Texás (the Cily) as ¡¡*¿ i"¡Al y"ri ' '

ended September 30,2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic '
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. ,:

Manøger4entt s Responsíbilìry for the Fínøncìøl Støtements

Management is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of these financial statements'in .acoordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the desþ, implementation, and
maintenance of internal conlrol relevant to the preparation and fair presenta-tion of financial statements that are. frêe fronn
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ,

''.t,t..

Auditor's Responsíbilíty ,

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 'We conducted our:audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to '
financial:audits conøined tn Government Auãiting Standards,issued by the Comptroller General of the United Sìates. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about.whether the financial statements
afe ftee'f¡om material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedtrnes to obt¿in audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the, financial
st¿tements. The procedures sãlected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the'risks of àaterial I ,

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or eror; In making those risk assessments, the auditor ' ; '. , ':

considers internal control relevant to the enlity's preparation and fair presentation of the,financial statements in grder to
design auditprocedures that are appropriaæ in thetciicumstances, but not for the purposerof expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internat control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.-An audit also includes évaluating the l

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,

We believe that the audit evidetce we have obtained is suffieient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Other Møtters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and
analysis on pages 3-10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic fìnancial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
V/e do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's
basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Orgønizøtions, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor fund furancial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibilþ
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Require d by Gov ernment Audítíng Støndørds

In accordance with Government Auditing Støndards, we have also issued our report dated February ll, 2014, on our
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Ð¿"r¿ r6b^¿ r (3, Pc
Certified Public Accountants

Abilene, Texas
February ll,20l4
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As Management of the City of Leander, we offer readers of the City's financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. It should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGIILIGHTS

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year ended September 30,2013,
by $124,155,134 (net position). Of this amount, $19,588,138 (unrestricted net position) may be used to
meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The City's total net position increased by $22,505,337 for the year ended September 30,2013. Most of
this increase is due to increased sales tax revenue, building and development-related fees, grants,
impact fees, and capital contributions from developers.

As of September 30, 2013, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$11,378,468, a decrease of $636,724 in comparison with the prior fiscal year due to expenditures on
capital projects.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $7,703,556 or
47.84% of total general fund expenditures.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's proprietary funds reported combined ending net
position of $70,850,835, an increase of $6,298,189 in comparison with the prior year. Most of the
increase is attributable to increased infraskucture conkibuted by developers and capital projects.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINA¡ICIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's basic financial
statements are comprised of three components: government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and notes to
the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the Cþ is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the fiscal year. All of the
current year's revenues and expenses are reported as soon as the underlþg event giving rise to the change occllrs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and eamed but unused vacation leave).

Both the govemment-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Leander that are principally supported by taxes
and intergovemmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges þusiness-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Leander
include general government, public safety, public works and sfeets, and parks and recreation. The business-type activities of the
City of Leander include water and wastewater services and the City's public golf course.

The govemment wide furancial statements can be found on pages ll - 12 of this rçort.

a

a

a

a

a
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Fund Financial Statements

The fund frnancial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the City as a whole. Some
funds are required to be established by state law and bond covenants. However, the City establishes many other funds to help it
control and manage money for particular purposss or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes,
grants, and other money. The City's two kinds of funds - govenìmental and proprietary - use different accounting approaches.

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Howeveq unlike ttre
government-wide financial statements, govemmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resoltrces) as well as on balances of spendable resources aval.lable at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term
financ ing requirements.

a

Because the focus on govemmental funds is na¡rower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the govemment-wide furancial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the govemmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Leander has four major governmental funds - general fund, debt service fun{ capital projects
fund, and traffic impact analysis fund. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds
balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for each of these major funds. The Cþ also has several nonmajor special revenue funds.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and ftaffic impact analysis fund.
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the general fund and traffic impact anaþis
fund on pages 17 and 18, respectively, to demonstrate compliance with the appropriated budgets.

Proprietary funds - The City maintains two enterprise funds, which are proprietary fund types.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City of Leander uses enterprise funds to account for its
water and wastewater services and the City's public golf course.

The City's fund financial statements can be found on pages 13 - 22 of this report.

Notes to the tr'inancial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide
and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the basic financial
statements on pages 23 - 42 of this report

a
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE F'INANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may servs over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the
City of Leander, assets exceeded liabilities by $124,155,134 atthe close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the City's net position (80.4%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, equipment,
infrastructure, and system improvements) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capiøl assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

CITY OT'LEAI\DER'S NET POSITION

Govemmental Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 20t2

Current and other assets

Capital assets

Total assets

s 15,657,497

92,395,442
$ 15,852,342

77,084,704
s 17,653,277

122,544,206
$ 20,866,999 s 33,310,774 $

116,001,509 214,939,649
36,719,230

193,086,213
108,052,939 92,937,046 140,t97,483 t36,868,397 249,250,422 229,805,443

Long-term liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net position:
Net investment in

capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

51,410,375
3,338,265

53,111,224 66,750,768
2,595,880

69,042,243 119,161,143 122,153,467

6,002,1792.728,671 3,273,509 5,934,145
54,748,640 55,839,895 69,346,649 72.315,751 124,095,288 129,155,646

43,032,596
937,727

9,333,996

28,836,149
1,053,437

7,207,565

56,731,591

3,965,092
10,254,r52

49,945,695
1,086,103

13,520,849

99,764,177
4,802,919

19,588,138

78,781,844
2,139,540

20,728,413

$ s3.304.299 $ 37.097.151 $ 70.850.835 s 645 52.646 $ 124,1s5,134 $ 10t,649,797

An additional portion of the City of Leander's net position (3.87%) represents resources that are subject to extemal
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position, $19,588,138, may be used to meet
the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Leander is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
positions for the government as a whole.

The City's net position increased by $22,505,337 during the current fiscal year. Almost all of this increase is due to increased
sales tax revenue, building and development-related fees, grants, impact fees, and capital contributions from developers.

5



CITY OF LEANDER'S CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2013 2012 20t3 2012 2013 20t2

Program revenues

Charges for services

Grants and contributions
Capital contributions

General revenues
Property taxes
Other taxes

Interest income

Other income

Total revenues

$ 6,724,969 S

264,410
l2,7ll,3lg

12,552,676

3,935,969
14,402
46,435

4,635,036 $

138,693

7,036,733

$ 16,251,608

7,907,423

$ 24,085,536 $

264,410
21,997,702

12,552,676

3,835,969

27,875
46,463

17,360,567

9,276,384

20,886,644

138,693

14,944,156

12,027,326

3,394,369
180,83 1

68,961

12,027,326
3,394,369

70,977
47,961

109,854

21,000
24,289,885

13,473

28

36,150,178 27,351,095 26. 650,452 62,800,630 51,640,990

Expenses

General government

Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Interest on long-term debt

Utility services
Golf course

Total expenses

4,828,779

9,916,377
3,217,455
1,879,5r4
1,976,905

4,997,344
8,395,691
2,811,994
1,891,799

2,010,249

4,929,779

8,916,377
3,2t7,455
1,878,514
1,976,905

18,091,925
1,395,339

4,897,344
9,395,691
2,gll,gg4
l,ggl,7gg
2,010,249

11,800,494

1,345,920

18,091,925

I,385,338
11,800,494

1,345.920
20,8 1 8,030 20,007 ,067 19,477 ,263 13"1 46,4I4 40,295,293 33,153,491

Increase in net position
before transfers

Transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning,

as restated
Net position - ending

15,332,148

g75,000

16,207,148

37,097,151
$ 53,304,299

7,344,029

(145,000)

7,r73,lgg

(875,000)

11,143,471 22,505,337 lg,4g7,4gg

145,000

7,199,028 6,29g,lg9 ll,2gg,47l 22,505,337 lg,4g7,4gg

29,898,123 64,552,646 53,264,175 101,649,797 83,162,298

s 101,649,797

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City of Leander's net position by $16,207,148. Key elements of this increase are as

follows:

Capital contributions provided 35.16% of the Cþ's governmental revenues. These include streets and
drainage infrastructure contributed by developers.

Tax revenues (property, sales, and franchise fees) provided45.33% of the City's governmental revenues.
Tax revenues increased by $966,949, or 6.27Yo, over 2012.

Increases to governmental activities net position were partially offset by expendiûres on two major steet
and drainage projects, County Glen subdivision and County Road 179, that reduced available fund
balances in the capital projects fund and the haffic impact analysis fund, respectively.

a

a

a
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Expenses and Program Revenues – Governmental Activities 
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Business-type Activities 
 
Business-type activities increased the City of Leander’s net position by $6,298,189. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 
 

 Capital grants and contributions provided 34.81% of the City’s business-type revenues. This includes 
water and wastewater infrastructure contributed by developers as well as water and wastewater impact 
fees. 
 

 Water and sewer rates did not increase in 2013. However, future rates are sensitive to future growth rates.  
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the City of Leander uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
The focus on the City of Leander’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, 
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of 
the fiscal year. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $11,378,468, a 
decrease of $636,724 in comparison to the prior year.   
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Leander. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund 
balance was $7,703,556. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both the unassigned fund 
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned and total fund balance represents 47.84% and 52.39%, 
respectively, of general fund expenditures. 
 
The fund balance of the City of Leander’s general fund increased by $3,495,837 during the current fiscal year. The key 
factors in this increase were increased sales tax revenue and building and development-related fees. 
 
 



The debt service fund experienced an increase in fund balance of $152,404 during 2013, representing an increase in fund
balance ofß.69%from20l2, due to greater than anticipated property tax collections. The capital projects fund experienced
a decrease in fund balance of $3,162,878 during 2013 due to ongoing construction activities. The traffic impact analysis fund
experienced a decrease in fund balance of $ 1 ,3 8 1,443 during 20 13 due to construction of a significant roadway project.

Proprietary Funds

The City of læander's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unreshicted net position of the utility fund at the end of the year amounted to $10,316,522. Unrestricted net position of the
golf course fund at the end of the year amounted to a deficit of 562,370. The utility fund experienced an increase in net assets
of $6,321,377 during 2013, representing an increase in net position of l0.27Yo from 2012, due to capital contibutions f¡om
developers and impact fees. The golf course fund experienced a decrease in net position of $23,188 during 2013, representing
a decrease in net positionof 0.77Yo from20l2, due to depreciation expense.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Actual revenues were greater than budgeted revenues by 52,562,538. This is mostly attibutable to the increase in sales tax
revenue as well as development-related fees exceeding projections. Actual expenditures were below final budgeted expenditures
by $445,948. This is mainly attributable to salary savings caused by several vacant positions as well as cert¿in expenditures that
were planned for but that did not occur in the current fiscal year.

Traffic Impact Analysis Fund Budgetary Highlights

Actual revenues were less than budgeted revenues by $686,295. This is mostly attibutable to the timing of contractual payments
from Williamson County and Leander ISD for their contributions to the County Road 179 project. The balance of approximately
$900,000 is anticipated in fiscal year 2014. Actual expenditures were below final budgeted expenditures by $544,053 due to the
County Road 179 project that was still under construction at year end.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City of Iæander's inveshnent in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30,2013
amounts to $306,119,648 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investrnent in capital assets includes land, buildings and
improvements, infrastructure and system improvements (including steets and drainage infrastructure), and machinery and
equipment.

CITY OF LEANDER'S CAPITAL ASSETS

Govemmental Activities Business-type Activities
2013 2012 20t3 2012

Total
2013 2012

Land $

Construction in progress

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure and system

Less: accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets $

1,734,940 s
23,861,622

18,871,651

8,149,036

59,683,724

1,734,940 I
12,465,376

18,871,651

7,977,727

53,111,769

2,331,933 $

6,139,790
1,350,034

1,654,270

130,570,072

2,331,833 $

9,052,344

1,350,034

1,622,997

119,520,177

4,066,773 $

30,001,402

20,221,685

9,902,306

190,253,796

4,066,773

20,5t7,720
20,221,695

9,600,614
172,631,946
(33,952,s2s\1 l) (16,87s.766\ (39,406,314)

9239s,442 r 16,001.s09 $ 214

Additional information regarding the Cþ's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 30 - 3 I of this report.

9
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Long-term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Leander has total general obligation debt outstanding of $50,050,000 and a note
payable of $565,000, which the Cify expects to retire through the debt service fund. The City has long-term bonded debt
outstanding of $54,857,000 and a note payable of $ I 1,031,313 at Septemb er 30,2013 in the utilþ fund. Additional information
on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 7 on pages 32 -36 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXTYEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City adopted a rax rate of $0.66792 ($0.43142 for maintenance and operations and $0.2365 for
interest and sinking) for fiscal year 2013.

Thenumberof wateraccountsincreasedby553, or5.7Yo,from9,734in2012to10,287 in2013.This
trend in growth is expected to continue.

In July 2012,the City approved ordinances consenting to the creation of three in-city Municipal Utility
Districts encompassing over 2,100 acres in Travis County. The property is subject to development
agreements which stipulate the required development standards and facilities that must be constructed.
The agreements also contain provisions for property tax and utility impact fee rebates. Construction of
the development commenced in 2013. At build-out, the development is expected to include
approximately 3,000 residential units.

In December 2013, the City approved an ordinance consenting to the creation of an in-city Municipal
Utility District encompassing over 198 acres in V/illiamson County to be known as the Palmera Ridge
Municipal Utility District. The property is subject to a development agreement which stþulates the
required development standards and facilities that must be constructed. The agreement also contains
provisions for utility impact fee rebates, but does not contain any property tax rebates. Construction of
the development is expected in 2014. At build-out, the development is expected to include
approximately 600 residential units.

a

a

a

a

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about
this report or need additional financial information, contact Robert Powers, Finance Director, City of Leandr., p.O. Box 3 19,
Leander, Texas 78646-03 19.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Net Position
As of September 30, 2013

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance)

Taxes

Accounts
Interfund balances
Due from other govemments
Inventory
Prepaid items

Reshicted cash and cash equivalents
Deferred charges
Investment in joint venture
Capital assets, net:

Nondepreciable
Depreciable

Tot¿l assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable

Deposits and escrow
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities :

Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

Primarv Government
Governmental Business-type

Activities

s 12,715,364 S 7,356,966 S 20,072,330

946,100
408,342
(10,000)
806,182

946,100
1,926,0371,517,695

10,000
176,639

31,015
31,203

760,306

25,596,562

66,798,880

5,833,382
536,542

2,191,039

982,82t
31,015

31,203
5,833,382
l,296,g4g
2,191,039

9,471,613
114,072,593

34,068,175
180,871.473

108,052,939 140,197,483 248,250.422

1,486,941
276,633
243,703
929,779

40t,309

2,269,771

49,140,604

590,612
61,940

491,704
1,190,374

271,250

2,077,453
338,573
735,407

2,110,153
672,559

2,274,965
64,475,903

4,544,636
113,616,507

54,748,640 69,346,648 124,095,299

43,032,596
332,909
604,818

9,333.986

56,731,591
3,713,393

151,699
10,254,152

99,764,177
4,046,302

756,517
19.588,138

$ 53,304,299 $ 70,950,935 $ 124,155,134

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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crTY oF LEANDE& TEXAS
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30,2013

Prosram Revenues

Expenses
Charges for

Services

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital Grants
and

ContributionsFunctions/Programs

Primary government:
Governmental activities :

General government

Public safety

Public works
Parks and recreation
Interest on long term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities :

Utility services

Golf course

Total business-type activities

Total primary govemment

20,818,030 6,724,969 264,410 12,7tt,318

s 4,828,779
9,916,377
3,217,455
1,878,514

1,976,905

$ 1,687,105

76t,3t5
4,152,505

124,044

13,239
249,380

1,792

12,343,540

367,779

$ $

9,276,394

19,477,263 9,276,384

s 40,295,293 $ 24,085.536 _s 2þ!a9_ $ 2r,987,702

General revenues:

Taxes

Property

Sales

Franchise

Mixed beverage

Interest income
Other income
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning, as restated

Net position - ending

18,09t,925
1,385,339

16,lg3,4lg
1,167,149

17,360,567

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

$ (3,t28,436)
(7,905,682)

13,278,590
(1,384,900)

$ $ (3,128,436)
(7,905,682)

13,278,590
(1,384,900)
(1,976,905)(1 ,976,905)

(1,117,333) (1,117,333)

7,377,877
(218,189)

7,371,977
(218,189)

7,159,688 7,159,699

(1,117,333) 7,l5g,6gg 6,042,355

12,552,6',76

2,613,321

1,216,222

6,425
14,402
46,435

875,000

13,473

28

(875,000)

12,552,676

2,613,321

1,216,222

6,425

27,975

46,463

17,324,481 (861,499) 16,462,982

16,207,148 6,298,199 22,505,337

37,097,151 64,552,646 101,649,797

$ 53,304"299 __$_?!Ægtr_ s r24,tss.t34
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CITY OF LEANDE& TEXAS
Balance Sheet

Govemmental Funds
As of September30,2013

General

Fund

Debt
Service

Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund

Traffic
Impact

Analysis
Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable, net
Other receivables, net
Due from other governments
Prepaid items

Total assets _trJ"Jz!Æ_ s 6s2,ts2 s2.0s4.666 s 387.099 $ 688,319

g 9,727,691
898,765
409,342

59,954
37,203

$ 604,817 $1,307,438 $ 387,099 $ 688,319
47,335

747,228

s 12,715,364
946,100
408,342

806,182
31,203

s 14^907.tgt

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Due to other funds
Accrued wages
Other accrued expenses

Customer deposits
Deferred revenue
Deposits in escrow

Total liabilities

F'UND BALAi\CES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and
fund balances

s 7tt,024 $

242,045
34,588

$ 4t4,319 $ 360,943 $

47,334

555

10,000

250

$ 1,486,841

10,000

242,045
34,599

2s0
825,470
929,529

779,136
oto <10
t-t.JLJ

2,695,322

31,203

694,874

7,703,5s6

47,334 4t4,3t9 10,805 3.s28,723

604,818 I,640,347 145,297

531,670

6,063
(5.s16)

31,203
2,390,462

1,252,700

6,063
7,698,040

26,156

8,429,633 604,818 1,640,347 26 r56 677.514 11,378,469

sr1. s 6s2,t52 52,054,666 s38 7.099 $ 688,319

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEANDE& TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Position
As of September30,2013

Fund balances of governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the govemmental funds balance sheet.

Bonds payable and capital leases payable are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, have not been included in the fund financial statements.

Accrued liabilities for compensated absences and net pension obligation are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, have not been included in the fund financial
statements.

Interest payable on long-term debt is accrued in the government-wide financial
statements, whereas in the fund financial statements, interest expenditures are reported
when due.

Bond issuance costs are recorded as expenditures when paid in the fund financial
statements but are capitalized and amortized in the government-wide financial
statements.

Revenues from property taxes and fines are deferred in the fund financial statements until
they are considered available to fund current expenditures, but such revenues are
recognized in the government-wide financial statements.

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$ t 1,378,468

92,395,442

(50,670,294)

(740,081)

(243,703)

760,306

424,161

s s3,304,299



CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30,2Ol3

REVENUES
Taxes:

Property tax
Franchise tax

Sales tax

Mixed beverage tax
Licenses and permits

Grant/intergovernmental

Fines and forfeitures

Interest income

Charges for services

Donations/contributions

Other income

Total revenues

EXPENDITT]RES
Current

General government

Public safety

Public works
Parks and recreation

Debt service

Principal retirement

Interest

Bond issuance costs

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (defrciency)
ofrevenues over
expenditures

Debt Capital Traffic Impact
Service Projects Analysis
Fund Fund Fund

General

Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 8,019,371

1,216,222

2,613,32t
6,425

3,909,637

530,332

375,254

6,154

1,644,622

348,823

57,114

s4,393,567

2,700

s 186,712

367,778

9,595

124,534

415

61,146

790

$ 12,599,650

1,216,222

2,613,321

6,425

4,305,910

4,569,927

4gg,7gg

14,402

1,705,769

2,081,603

57,114
29,670,030

$ $

129,395
4,030,000

4,167 966

48,587 1,693,403

18,626,275 4,396,267 4,092,754 r,81 3,764

4,636,100

7,93I,104
1,754,359

1,429,495
5,187

750,970

72,856

6,335

2,265,000

1,967,033

11,930

18,970

65,186

29,548

4,655,070

7,996,290

1,759,546

1,459,033

2,337,956

1,973,369

I I,930
259,883 7,675,445 3,5 65,207 60,1 19 I I

16,090,122 4,243,963 7,690,632 3,5 65,207 173,823 31,753,647

2,536,153 152,404 (3,597,979) (1,751,443) 577,147 (2,083,617)

OTHERF'INANCING
soriRcEs (usES)

Debt proceeds

Proceeds from sale ofassets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing
sources and uses

Net change
in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

565,000
4,694

1,490,000
(1,100,000)

435,000 370,000
2,209

100,000
(420,000)

565,000
6,993

2,395,000
(1,520,000)

959,684

3,495,937

4,933,796

152,404

452,414

(3,162,979)

4,903,225

435,000 370,000 (317,791) 1,446,993

s 8,429,633 $ 604.818 _t 1"9!9ffi_ $ 26,156

(t,38t,443) 259,356 (636,724)

1,407 ,599 418,159 12,01 5,192
s

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEANDE& TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30,2013

Net change in fund balances --total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmentql qctivities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capiøl outlay ($11,566,555) exceeds

depreciation expense ($2,827,7 7 2).

The City received street and drainage infrastructure contributed by developers.

Bond issuance costs are expended in the fund financial statements when paid but are

capitalized and amortized in the government-wide financial statements.

Deferred losses on refunding and premiums are amortized over the life of the bonds in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proceeds from issuance ofdebt are recorded as other financing sources in the fund financial
statements but increase liabilities in the government-wide financial statements.

Principal payments on bonds payable of $2,265,000 and principal paid on capital leases

payable of $72,856 are expenditures in the fund financial statements but are shown as

reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements.

Additions to liabilities for compensated absences and net pension obligation are not shown in
the fund financial statements. The net effect of the current year's increase is to decrease net
position.

Interest payable on long-term debt is accrued in the government-wide financial statements,

whereas in the fund financial statements, interest expenditures are reported when due. The
decrease in interest accrual from20l2 to 2013 increases net position.

Revenues from property taxes and fines are deferred in the fund financial statements until
they are considered available to fund current expenditures, but such revenues are recognized
in the government-wide statements. The effect of recognizing deferred tax and fines revenue

of 5424j61 and rernoving prior year's deferred tax and fines recognized, of $522,861 is to
decrease net position.

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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($ 636,724)

8,738,783

6,571,955

(77,308)

7,607

(565,000)

2,337,956

(79,6t4)

8,293

(98,700)

s 16,207,148



CITY OF LEANDE& TEXAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended September 30,2013

Budseted Amounts
Actual

AmountsOrisinal Final
Variance with
Final BudeetREVENUES

Taxes:

Property tax
Franchise tax
Sales t¿x
Mixed beverage tax

Licenses and permits
Grants/intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Interest income
Charges for services
D onations/contributions
Other income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government
Public safety

Public works- streets/engineering
Parks and recreation

Debt service

Principal retirement
Interest

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

OTHER F',TNANCTNG SO{JRCES (USES)
Debt proceeds

Proceeds from sale ofassets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

t4.9tl,757 t6,063,737 18,626,275 2,562,538

$ 7,970,000 $

1,150,000

2,150,000
6,500

1,235,600
263,990
472,500

6,000
1,529,467

6i,500
67,200

7,970,000
1,150,000

2,150,000
6,500

1,921,400

537,690
472,500

6,000
1,526,667

361,500

61,490

$ 8,019,371 $

1,216,222

2,613,321
6,425

3,809,637
530,332
375,254

6,154
1,644,622

348,823

49,371

66,222
463,321

(7s)
1,987,237

(7,358)
(97,246)

154

117,955
(t2,677)

(4,366)57 1t4

4,960,655
7,967,645
l,'745,205
l,32g,116

4,957,193
7,933,064
l,l6l,gg5
1,433,116

206,972

4,636,100
7,931,104
1,754,359
1,429,495

321,083
1,960
'7,626

3,631

22,000 243 7s0

72,856
6,335

259,883

l34,116
(6,335)

(r 6,133)
1 I 16,536,070 16,090,122 445,948

Excess @eficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (1,111,864) (472,333\ 2.53 6,153 3,009,496

5,000
1,490,000

(1,100,000)

565,000
4,694

1,490,000
(1,100,000)

565,000
(3 16)5,000

1,190,000
(l00.000)

1,095.000 39s.000 959,684 564,684

4,933,796
s 4.9t6.932

3,495,837 3,573,170

4,933,796

(16,864) (77,333)

4,933,796
s 4.8s6.463 $ 8,429,633 $ 3,573,170

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Traffic Impact Analysis Fund
For the Year Ended September 30,2013

Budgeted Amounts

Original
Actual

AmountsFinal
Variance with
Final Budeet

REVENUES
Licenses and permits
Interest income
Donations/c ontributions

Total revenues

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

$ $

2,300,000 2,500,059

$ 129,395 $

966
1,683,403

t29,395
966

(816,6s6)
2,300,000 2,500,059 1,913,764 (686,29s\

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
3,429,260 4.109,260
3,429,260 4,109,260

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (t,r29,260) (1,609,20r)

OTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Total other financing sources and uses

3,565,207 544,053
3,565,207

(r,7sl,443\

544,053

(142,242\

370,000 370,000
370,000 370,000

(t42,242)

$ 278,339 $ 168,398 Å__JtÆÉ_ s (142,242)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(1,129,260)

1,407,599

(1,239,201)

1,407,599

(1,381,443)

t,407,599
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
As of September 30,2013

Business-type Activities -
Enternrise Funds

Utility
Fund

Golf Course
Fund

Total Enterprise
FundsASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net
Due from other funds
Due from other governments

Inventory
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets

Bond issuance costs, net
Investment in joint venture

Capiøl assets, net:

Nondepreciable property
Depreciable property
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable

Customer deposits

Unearned revenue

Compensated absences payable - current
Note and bonds payable - current
Capital lease obligations - current

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Net pension obligation
Compensated absences payable

Note payable

Bonds payable

Capital lease obligations
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service

Unrestricted
Total net position

$ 7,345,76r
1,516,067

10,000

t76,639

5,833,392

I1,205
1,628

31,015

7,356,966
1,517,695

10,000

176,639

3l,015
s,833,382

$ $

14,881,849 43 848

2,095,595
967 t02

3,0s2,687

14,925,697

536,542

2,l9l,o3g

6,396,029
113,105,491

536,542
2,lg1,o3g

8,471,613
r14,072,593

122,219,099 125,271,786
137,100,949 3,096,535 140,197,483

564,529
42,016

49t,704
1,190,374

271,250
4,086

2,255,246
5,518

26,083
19,924

3,374

6,641

590,612
61,940

491,704
1,190,374

271,250
7,460

2,255,246
12,159

4,814,723 56,022 4,870,745

26,995
36,776

10,592,114
53,761,534

26,469
30,368

53,464

67,144
10,592,114
53,761,534

1,647647
64,417,419 58,484 64,475,903
69,232,142 114,506 69,346,649

53,687,192
3,713,393

t5t,699
10,316,522

3,044,399

(62,370)

$ 67,868.806 g 2982.029

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

56,731,591

3,713,393
151,699

10,254,152
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30,2013

Business-type Activities -
Funds

Utility
Fund

Golf Course
Fund

s 1,167,149 $

Total Enterprise
Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sales and services
Other revenue

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Utility operations
Golf course operations
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Proceeds from the sale ofassets
Interest income
Interest expense and fees

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses)

Income before contributions and transfers

Capital confibutions from developers
Capital contributions from impact fees
Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net position

Total net position - beginning, as restated
Total net position - ending

$ 16,152,139
41,279

17,319,289

41,279
16,193,418 1 167 149 l7,360,567

12,831,979

2.552.002
1,319,309

66,030

12,831,979
1,319,309

2,618,032
15,383.981 1,385,339 t6,769,319

809,437

28

13,472
(2,707,944)

(218,189) 591,248

28

13,473
(2,707,944)

(2,694,444) (2,694,443)

(1,885,007)

5,517,868

3,758,516
290,000 195,000

5,517,869
3,759,516

485,000
(1,360,000)

(2 I 8,188) (2,103,t95)

n .360.000)

6,321,377

61,547,429

(23,1 88)

3.005.2t7

6,2gg,l8g

64,552,646

_$__-_l?,!l!,g9.q- s 2.982,029

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30,2013

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Utility
Fund

Golf Course
Fund

Total
Enterprise

CASH F'LOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS F'ROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers (to) from other funds
Payments to other funds
Net cash (used) provided by noncapital

financing activities

CASH FLOWS F'ROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
F'INANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the sale of assets

Capital contributions- impact fees and others
Acquisition of capital assets

Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Net cash used by capital and related

financing activities

CASH F'LOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on pooled investments
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning ofyear

Cash and cash equivalents - end ofthe year

Reported as:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

(t2,219,163\ (730.31 1)

$ 16,225,593 $

(625,346)
1,167,209 $
(585,731)

17,392,902
(1,211,077)

(12,949,474)
3,381,084 n48.833) 3,232,251

(1,070,000)
(e0,913)

195,000 (875,000)
(e0,913)

(1,160,913) 195,000 (96s,913)

28
3,759,516

(3,644,348)
(2,243,953)
(2,498,990\

(6,500)
(30,867)

28

3,758,516
(3,650,848)
(2,274,820)
(2,498,990)

(4,628,747) (37,367) (4,666,1I4)

13.472 13,473
13,472 13,473

I
I

(2,395,t04)

15,574,247

8,801

2,404

(2,386,303)

t5,576,651

s ryüze_ $ 11,20s $ 13.190"348

s 8,520,204
4,659,939

$ 13,179.143

$ 1 1,205 $ 8,53 1,409

s 11.205 $ 13.190.348

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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crTY oF LEANDE& TEXAS
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30,2013

Business-type Activities -
Funds

Utility
Fund

Golf Course
Fund

Total
Enterprise

Funds

RECONCILIATION Of,'OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustrnents to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Decrease in invesÍnent in joint venture
Decrease in accounts receivable
Increase in inventory
Increase in customer deposits
Decrease in accounts payable

Increase in accrued liabilities
Decrease in unearned revenue

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

NONCASII CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCINGACTIVITIES
Infrastructure contributed by developers

$ 809,437 $ (218,189) $ 591,248

2,552,002
806,9t7

g4,g5g

66,030

60
(5,774)

(1,579)
10,619

2,619,032
806,917

85,018
(5,774)
63,467

(856,590)
46,183

(rr6,2s0)

63,467
(855,011)

35,564
(1r6,250)

$ 3.381.084 $ 048.833) Å_?,2322s1

$ 5,517,868$ s,s17,868 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30,2013

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Leander, Texas (the City) was incorporated in 1978 under the Provisions of the State of Texas. The City operates
under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following services: public safety (fire and police), streets,
water and wastewater services, public improvements, planning and zoning, parks and recreation, and general administrative
services. The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The City's reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements.

A. Reporting Entity

The City, for financial pulposes, includes all of the funds relevant to the operations of the City. As required by generally
accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City and all component units, when applicable, for
which the City is considered to be financially accountable.

Consideration regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations, or functions in the City's financial
reporting entity is based on criteria prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles. These same criteria are evaluated
in considering whether the City is a part of any other governmental or other tlpe of reporting entity. The overriding elements
associated with prescribed criteria considered in determining that the City's financial reporting entity status is that of a
primary government are that it has a separately elected governing body, it is legally separate, and it is financially independent
of other state and local governments. Additional prescribed criteria under generally accepted accounting principles include
considerations pertaining lo organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable and considerations
pertaining to other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Based on these considerations, the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #l (TIRZ) has been included in the City's reporting
entity as a blended component unit. Additionally, as the City is considered a primary government for financial reporting
pu{poses, its activities are not considered a part of any other govemmental or other type of reporting entity.

The Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #l (TIRZ), a blended component unit, was created to enable the proper planning,
layout, financing, and construction of public streets and roadways and water, \¡¡astewater, and drainage systems to improve
traffic flow, access, and public safety, eliminate some conditions that endanger life or property, and provide facilities
necessary for public safety, health, and welfare. The affairs of the District are managed by a Board of Directors composed of
four directors appointed by the City Council and one director appointed by Williamson County, Texas. Additionally, the
TIRZ will primarily benefit the City by constructing public streets and roadways and water, wastewater, and drainage
systems within the City. Complete financial statements for the component unit may be obtained at the City's administrative
office.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and
the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmentql activities, which are normally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately fuom business-type øctivities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges to external users for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately
from any legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are cleady identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include: l) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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Note 1: Summary of Signi{ïcant Accounting Policies - continued

Fund financial statements. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management
by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. The accounts of the City are organized on
the basis offrrnds, each ofwhich is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations ofeach fund are accounted for
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures/expenses. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental and proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focuso Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis ofaccounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financiøl resources meqsurement focus and the
modiJìed accruql basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues
are considered to be qvailable when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this pu{pose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days
of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when the liability has matured and payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, interest revenue, and charges for services associated with the curent fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period, if
available. Grant revenues are recognized only as grant expenditures are incurred to the extent that the expenditures are
allowable and eligible for reimbursement. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
the City receives cash.

The City reports the following major govemmental funds:

The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term
debt principal, interest, and related costs.

The capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of majs¡
capital facilities other than those financed by the proprietary fund types. Such resources are derived from proceeds of
general obligation bonds or other sources ofrevenue specifically set aside for capital projects.

The traffic impact analysis fund is used to account for fees paid by developers for the impact their development will have
on the City's transportation infrastructure.

Additionally, the City reports the following nonmajor governmental fund types:

The special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than major capital
projects) that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service or
capital projects.

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises, where the intent ofthe governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) ofproviding goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

The City maintains the following major enterprise fund:

The utility fund accowts for the City's water and wastewater utilities, including operations, maintenance of the
infrastructure, and expansion of the system within the City's service territory.

The City maintains the following nonmajor enterprise fund:

The golf course fund accounts for the City's golf course, including operations and maintenance of the grounds and
equipment.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating itnms. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the City's utility and golf course funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating
expenses include cost of services and depreciation expense on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
dcfinition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use rest¡icted resources first,
and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Additionally, the City would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly
unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's water and sewer function and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various
functions concerned.

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity

Cash and cash equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows for the proprietary fund types, the City considers all
highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with an original maturity of three months or less from purchase to be
cash equivalents.

Investments - Investments are reported at fair value, and the changes in the fair value of investments are recognized as
investment revenue.

Inventory - Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market using the fust-in/first-out (FIFO) method.

Restricted assets - Restricted assets include capital recovery fees (impact fees) that are, by law, restricted for future capital
improvements, customer deposits, and assets set aside for construction of future debt funded capital improvements.

Receivables - Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as "due tolfrom other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide furancial statements as "internal balances."

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade accounts receivable in excess
of 60 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectibles. The property tax receivable allowance is
based on historical collection rate percentages.

Property taxes are levied by October I in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Properfy Tax Code. Taxes are due on receipt of
the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in which imposed. On February I
of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payrnent of all taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. The
Williamson and Travis Central Appraisal Districts (CAD) establish appraised values.

Taxes are levied by the City Council based on the appraised values received from each CAD. The Williamson and Travis
County Tax Assessors bill and collect the levied taxes.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

The City is permitted by the State of Texas to levy taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of assessed valuation for general government
services and for the payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt. The combined current tax rate to finance
general government services, including debt service, for the fiscal year ended September 30,2013, was $.67042 per $100 of
assessed valuation.

Joint venture - Investment in joint venture represents an equþ interest in the Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority
(BCRUA), a regional water treatment and distribution system. The investment amount represents læander's share in the joint
venture's netposition at September 30,2013.

Capital assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business{ype activities column in the government-wide financial statements and in the fund
financial statements for proprietary funds. All capital assets are valued at their historical cost or estimated historical cost if
actual historical cost is not available. Contributed assets are recorded at estimated fair market value on the date received. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset lives are not
capitalized. Improvements which extend asset lives are capitalized and depreciated over the useful lives of the related assets,
as applicable. The City defines capital assets as assets with an original cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of
over one year. When property or equipment is retired from service or otherwise disposed of the cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed, and any resulting gain or loss is reported in the statement of activities.

Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The amount of interest to be capitalized is
calculated by ofÏsetting interest expense incurred from the date of the bonowing until completion of the project with interest
earned on invested proceeds over the same period. No interest expense was capitalized in the Utility Fund in20l3.

Public domain ("infrastructure") capital assets such as roads, bridges, streets, curbs and gutters, sewers, and drainage systems
built and/or acquired beginning in fiscal year 2004 are capitalized. The value of infrastructure built and/or acquired prior to
fiscal year 2004 has not been capitalized,.

Depreciation is computed using the staight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range as follows:

Buildings and Improvements
Utility Distribution System
Steets and Drainage Infrastructure
Equipment

20-35 years
50 years
40 years
5-10 years

Lone-term oblisations - Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements and/or in the proprietary fund
type statement of net position.

Bond issuance costs - Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred artd amofüzed over the life of the
bonds using the staightJine method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amofüzed over the term of
the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, govemmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts as well as bond issuance
costs during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as ãebt service expenditures.

Compensated absences - Accumulated earned but unused vacation, which is expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources, is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that wiil pay it.
Amounts of accumulated vacation leave within governmental funds that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable,
available financial resources are reported as a long-term liability on the statement of net position. No expenditure is reported
for these amounts in the fund financial statements. Accumulated vacation leave of proprietary fund types are recorded as an
expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to employees.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policles - continued

Fund balance - In the fund financial statements, governmental funds reported the following classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendable - Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not spendable in form or are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. At September 30,2013, the City had $31,203 in nonspendable fund
balance for prepaid items. The City has not reported any amounts that are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

Restricted - Constraints placed on the use of these resources are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or other governments or are imposed by law (through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation). At September 30, 2013, $604,818 was restricted for the retirement of funded indebtedness,
51,640,347 was restricted for capital acquisition and contractual obligation, and 5145,297 was restricted for other
purposes.

Committed - Includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes as established by a Cþ Council resolution
or ordinance, the City's highest level of decision making authority. At September 30, 2013, the City had. 522,636
committed for the Bryson Farrnstead Historical District, 5669,644 committed for vehicle and equipment reserves, 82,594
committed for Leander clean-up, $26,156 committed for fansportation infrastructure development,S449,606 committed
for parks dedication, and $82,064 committed for other purposes.

Assigned - Includes amounts that are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to
be classified as restricted or committed. At September 30,2013, the City had $6,063 assigned for the parks special
revenue fund.

Unassigned - Includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or restricted, committed, or assigned to a
specific purpose within the general fund.

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2: Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountabitity

Budsetary Information

Sixty days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the Cþ Manager submits to the City Council a proposed budget for the
fiscal year beginning on the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditurès and the means of
financing them. V/ork sessions are conducted to obtain Council Member comments, and public hearings are conducted to
obtain citizen comments. The budget is legally enacted by the City Council through the adoption of an ordinance prior to the
beginning of the fiscal year. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items within a
department. Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any department must be approved by the City Council.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all govemmental and
proprietary fund t1pes. The budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles. Appropriations lapse at year end.

Deficit in Fund Balances

At September 30, 2013, the TIRZ #1 Fund has a deficit fund balance of $5,516 due to the timing of revenues versus
expenditures. Management intends to recover the deficit through future revenues.
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Note 3: Deposits and Investments

Cash and Cash Investments
Cash balances for most of the City's funds are consolidated in pooled cash and investment accounts. Pooled balances include
balances in demand deposits, local government investrnent pools, and certificates of deposit. Interest earnings are then
allocated to each fund based on ending monthly pooled equity balances. Separate cash and investment accounts are
maintained for interest and sinking funds (debt service).

Custodial credit rísk - deposits. At September 30, 2013, all of the City's deposits were covered by federal depository
insurance and pledged securities held by the city's depository agent in the city's name.

Investments

The City's investment policies and tlpes of investments are governed by the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA). These
policies authorize the City to invest in (1) obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, (2) certificates
of deposit by state and national banks doing business in Texas that are (a) guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation or its successor or (b) secured by obligations in a manner and amount provided by law for deposits of
the Cþ, (3) money market mutual funds that are (a) registered and regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission,
(b) have a dollar weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or less, (c) rated A.,AÁ. by at least one nationally recognized
rating service, and (d) seek to maintain a net asset value of $1.00 per share, (4) constant-dollar Texas local government
investment pools which (a) meet the requirements of PFIA, (b) are rated no lower than AAA or an equivalent rating by at
least one nationally recognized rating service, and (c) are authorized by resolution or ordinance by the City Council, (5) fully
collateralized repurchase agreements with a bank in Texas or a primary dealer, executed under the Bond Market Master
Repurchase Agreement in accordance with the PFIA not to exceed 120 days.

As of September 30,2013, the City had the following investments:

Fair
Value

Percentage

of Total
Credit
Rating

Investment Maturity
Less than I YearInvestment Type

Texas Term

TexSTAR
TexPool

Certificate of Deposits

Total Portfolio

$ 1,046,141

2908,443
7,230,675

6,020,718

6.08%

t690%
42.02%
34.99%

AAAm
AAAm
AAAm
N/A

1,046,141

2,908,443

7,230,675

6,020,779

$

$s 17,205,977 100.00% 17,205,977

Investment pools are not categorized as to investment risk since specific securities relating to the government cannot be
identified. The City utilizes the following local government investment pools for its short-term liquidity investment needs:
Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Program (TexSTAR), Texas L,ocal Government Investment Pool (TexPool), and Texas
Term. The reported values of the pools are the same as the fair value of the pool shares.

Under the TexPool Participation Agreement, administrative and invesknent services to TexPool are provided by Federated
Investors, Inc. through an agreement with the State of Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts. The State Comptroller is the
sole officer, director, and shareholder of the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company authorized to operate Texpool.
TexPool is subject to annual review by an independent auditor consistent with the Public Funds Investment Act. Audited
financial statements of the Pool a¡e available at First Public, 12008 Research Blvd., Austin, Texas 78759. In addition,
TexPool is subject to review by the State Auditor's Office and by the Internal Auditor of the Comptroller's Office.

The Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Fund (TexSTAR) is a local government investment pool organized under the authority
of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter
2256, Texas Government Code. TexSTAR is governed by a board of directors (the Board) and is co-administered ty l.n.
Morgan Investment Management, Inc. and First southwest Asset Management, Inc.
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Note 3: Deposits and Investments - continued

The Texas Term Local Government Investment Pool (TexasTERM) is a local government investment pool organized under
the authority of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas Government Code and the Public Funds Investment Act,
Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code. TexasTERM is administered by PFM Asset Management LLC, who also serves as

the investment advisor.

Interest rate risk. In accordance with its investrnent policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by
limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to 365 days. The maximum allowable stated maturity of
any individual investment owned by the City shall not exceed two years from the time of purchase.

Credit risk. State law and City policy limit investments in local govemment investment pools to those rated no lower than
AAA or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service. The City's investments are rated as to credit
qualþ as shown in the above table.

Concentration of credit risk. The City's investment policy does not limit investments in any one issuer except that the
investment portfolio shall be diversified in terms of investment instruments, maturity scheduling, and continuously investing
a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds such as local government investment pools.

Restricted Assets

As of September 30,2013, the City held restricted cash and investments of $5,833,382,for the following purposes:

Utility - construction

Utility - customer deposits

Utility - debt service

$ 4,501,309

l,lgo,374
151,699

Total restricted cash and invesfinents $ 5,833,382

Note 4: Receivables

Receivables as of September 30,2013 for the City's individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including
the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

General Debt Service Utility Nonmajor Total
Receivables:

Taxes

Accounts

Gross receivables

Less: allowance for
uncollectibles

Net total receivables

$ $ $

2,318,800 1,629

2,900,996 58,238 2,318,800 1,628 5,179,562

907,578 $

l,gg3,3l g

58,238 $ 965,816

4,213,746

(1,493,789) (10,903) (802,733) (2,307,425)

$ 1,307,107 $ 47,335 $ 1,516,067 $ 1,628 $ 2,972,137
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Note 5: Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

Governmental Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capiøl assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements

Equipment

Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements

Equipment

Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Capital assets, net

Business-type activities :

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capiùal assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements

Equipment

Infrastructure
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements

Equipment

Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

CITY OF LEANDE& TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30,2013

Beginning
Balance

$

Additions Retirements Endine Balance

$ $1,734,940 $

12,465,376 11.396,246

1,734,940

23,861,622

14,200,316 1t,396,246

18,871,651

7,977,727

25,596,562

18,871,651

8,149,036

53.1 I I ,769

170,309

6,571,955 59.683 ,724
79.961,147 6,742,264 86.703 ,4ll

(4,310,077)

(4,953,159)
(7,813,523)

(759,584)

(657,944)

(1,410,244)

(2,827,772)

(5,069,661)

(5,611,103)
(9 767)

07.076,759\ ll9 1)

$ 77,084,704 S

Beginning
Balance

15,310,738 $ s 92,395,442

Additions Retirements Ending Balance

$ 2,331,833 $
8,052,343 (5,473,300)

(5,473,300)

$ 2,331,833

6,139,790

8,471,613

$

3.560 ,737

10,384,176 3.560 ,737

1,350,034

1,622,997

179,520,179
31,383

tt,049,894

1,350,034

1,654,270

130,570,072
122.493 ,099 11,081,277 133,574,376

(15.63 3,t64)

(404,836)

(837,764)

(53,802)

(72,736)
(2,499,481)

(458,638)

(910,s00)

(18,132,645)

(19,501,793)(t6,875,764)

$ 116,001,511 $

(2,626,019)

Capital assets, net
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CITY OF LEANDER' TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30,2013

Note 5: Capital Assets - continued

In the government-wide financial statements, depreciation expense was charged to the City's programs as follows

General government

Public safety

Public works

Parks and recreation

Business-type Activities
Utility services

Golf course

$ 78,918

881,817

l,45l,116
415,921

s 2,827,772

2,559,989

66,030

$

$ 2,626,019

Note 6: Interfund ActÍvity

The City had the following due toldue from interfund account balances at September 30,2013:

DueToFund DueFromFund Amount Purpose
Utility tund Nonmajor governmental fund $ 10,000 Operating loan - current

The City had the following interfund transfer activity during the year ended September 30,2013

Transfer From Transfer To Amount
Utility tund

General fund

General fund

General fund

General fund
Nonmajor governmental fund

General fund

Traffic impact analysis fund
Capitalprojects fund

Nonmaj or governmental fund

Golf course fund
General fund

$ 1,360,000 Indirect cost recovery, debt
service, and franchise fee

Subsidize capital projects

Subsidize capital projects

Subsidize capiøl projects

Fund operating deficit
Reimburse administrative
overhead

Subsidize capital projects

370,000

435,000

100,000

195,000

130,000

Nonmajor governmental fund Utility fund 290,000

$ 2,880,000
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30,2013

Note 7: Long-term Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30,2013:

Balance

October 1

Retirements/ Balance Due Within
September 30 One YearIssued Refunding

Governmental activities

Bonds

Premium

Deferred loss on refunding

Net bonds payable

PPFC tax pledge

Capital leases

Net pension obligation
Compensated absences

Total governmental activity
Long-term liabilities

Business-type Activities
Bonds

Premium

Deferred loss on refunding

Net bonds payable

Note payable

Capital leases

Net pension obligation

Compensated absences

Total Business-type Activity
Long-term liabilities

$ 52,315,000 $

2,559,356
(2,499,447)

$ (2,265,000)

(158,699)

151,092

$ 50,050,000 $

2,400,657
(2,348,355)

2,145,000

158,699

(151,092)

52,374,909

75,848

327,337

333,130

565,000

58,528

21,086

('72,856)
565,000

2,992

385,865

354,216

78,750

2,992

(2,272,60',1) 50,102,302 2,152,607

35,422

$ 53,111,224 $ 644,614 $ (2,345,463) $ 51,410,375 $ 2,269,77r

$ 56,610,000 $

7,769,303
(1,007,675)

$ (1,753,000)

(139,788)

99,741
(1,793,047)

(426,407)

t t,oso 
e5'4-13)

ll,7l2 

-

$ 54,857,000 $

1,629,515
(907,934)

1,776,000

139,788

(99,-t4t)
57,370,629

11,457,720

t09,219
41,794

62,892

11,031,313

13,806

53,464

74,604

439,199

12,159

55,577,581 1,816,047

7,460

$ 69,042,243 $ 23,392 S (2,314,867) $ 66,750,768 $ 2.2"Ì4,865

For the governmental activities, the debt service fund has generally been used to liquidate general obligation bonds, and the
general fund has been used to liquidate compensated absences, net pension obligation, and capital leases payable.
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Note 7: Long-term Debt - continued

Governmental Activities

General Obligation Bonds:

A summary of Tax-Supported General Obligation Debt outstanding at September 30,2013 follows:

$4,245,000 Series 2005 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of $25,000 to
$3 5 0,000 through August I 5, 2025 ; interest at 4.0Yo to 4.25Yo.

$21,210,000 Series 2007 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of
$ 1,015,000 and $ 195,000 through August 15,2017; interest a13.95% to 4.00o/o.

$ 3,090,000

650,000

$4,630,000 Series 2009 Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of $125,000 to $1,010,000
through August I 5, 2017 ; interest at 3.00% to 3.25o/o. 3,0g0,ooo

$20,505,000 Series 2010 General Obligation and Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of
$265,000 to $3,370,000 throughAugust 15,2030; interest aI2.00Toto 4.00o/o. 20,505,000

$19,165,000 ($12,920,000 allocated to tax supported debt) Series 2012-A Refunding Bonds, due in
annual installments of $1,620,000 to $2,070,000 through August 15,2027; interest at3.}}Yoto 5.00%. 12,920,000

$14,310,000 ($10,875,000 allocated to tax supported debt) Series 2012 Refunding Bonds, due in annual
installments of $280,000 to $1,170,000 through August 15,2024; interest at2.00o/o to 5.00%. 9,805,000

Total general obligation bonds $ s0,050,000

The annual requirements to retire general long-term debt, including interest, as of Septemb er 30,2013 are as follows:

Year Ending

September 30 Principal Interest

General Obligation Bonds Total

Requirements

$ 2,145,000 $

3,555,000

4,340,000

3,7go,ooo

3,955,000

19,575,000

I 1,745,000

955,000

1,921,886 $

1,963,611

1,740,935

1,562,793

1,426,143

4,765,195

r,245,613

57,600

4,066,996

5,419,611

6,090,935

5,342,793

5,381,143

24,340,185

12,990,6t3

1,012,600

Totals $ 50,050,000 $ 14,583,666 $ 64,633,666

The ordinances authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds created an interest and sinking fund (debt service fund).
The ordinances require the City to ascertain a rate of ad valorem tax that will be sufficient to pay the principal and interest as
they become due.

20t4
20t5
2016

2017

201 8

2019-2023

2024-2028

2029-2033

JJ
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Notes to the Financial St¿tements
Year Ended September 30,2013

Note 7: Long-term Debt - continued

Note Payable:
The City obtained a loan with an effective interest rate of I.640% to purchase a new fìre engine during the year ended
September 30, 2013 . The City shall pay the required payments in semi-annual installments over a period of seven years with
the first principal and interest payment to occur on February 15,2014. The loan is collateralized by the fire engine.

The annual requirements to retire the note payable, including interest, as of September 30, 2013 are as follows

September 30 Principal Interest Requirements

$ 78,750 $

79,396

80,047

80,704

8l ,365
164,738

20t4
20ts
20t6
2017

2018

20t9-2023

9,961 $

7,974

6,672

5,360

4,036

4,058

88,711

87,370

86,719

86,064

85,401

168,796

Total 565,000 $ 38,061 $ 603,061

Business-type Activities

Revenue Bonds:

A summary of Revenue Debt outstanding at September 30,2013 follows:

$2,155,000 Series 2003 Vy'aterworks and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments
of S75,000 to $155,000 through February 15,2023; interest at 4.32%.

$7,150,000 Series 2010 Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of $745,000 to $1,525,000
through August 15,2020, interest 2.0yoto 4.0%.

$ 1,175,000

7,1s0,000

$36,270,000 Series 2012 Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligation, due in annual
installments of $735,000 to $2,190,000 through August 15,2036; interest at2Yoto 5%o. 34,495,000

$3,000,000 Series 2012 Tax Notes, due in annual installments of $583,000 to $617,000 through July 1,

2017 ; interest at l.42Yo. 2,417,000

$19,165,000 ($6,245,000 allocated to revenue supported debt) Series 2012-A Refunding Bonds, due in
annual installments of $530,000 to $740,000 through August 15,2027; interest at3.00Yo to 5.00%. 6,245,000

$14,310,000 ($3,435,000 allocated to revenue supported debt) Series 2012 Refunding Bonds, due in
annual installments of $5,000 to $720,000 through August 15,2024; interest at2.00Yo to 5.00%. 3,375,000

Total revenue bonds $ 54,857,000

The revenue bonds are payable from a pledge of the surplus revenues derived from the operation of the City's combined
Waterworks and Sewer system, after payrnent of all operation and maintenance expenses. The 2003 Vy'aterworks and Sewer
Revenue Refunding Bonds require a reserve equal to the average annual debt service requirements on the outstanding bonds,
which equals $140,925 at September 30,2013. The Cþ has $151,699 in their bond reserve fund at September 30,2013.

$
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CITY OF LEANDER" TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30,2013

Note 7: Long-term Debt - continued

The annual requirements to retire revenue bonds, including interest, as of Septemb er 30, 2013 are as follows:

Year Ending

September 30 Principal Interest

Total
Requirements

Revenue Bonds

20t4
2015

2016

2017

2018

20t9-2023
2024-2028

2029-2033

2034-2038

Year Ending

September 30

1,776,000 $

2,585,000

2,659,000

3,oo7,ooo

3,390,000

15,525,000

11,365,000

9,665,000

4,895,000

2,123,077 $

2,061,495

1,995,349

7,926,769

1,927,569

7,253,426

4,490,963

2,3g3,ggg

404,100

3,999,077

4,646,495

4,654,349

4,933,769

5,207,569

22,778,426

15,845,963

12,048,988

5,299,100

$

Total $ 54,857,000 $ 24,456,726 $ 79,313,726

Contract Revenue Debt:

During July 2009, the Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority issued $182 million of Contract Revenue Bonds, Series 2009,
which were purchased by the Texas Water Development Board. These Bonds were issued to finance the Brushy Creek
Regional Water Treatment and Distribution Project. Additional information in regards to this project can be found in the joint
venture note disclosure included in these financial statements. The City is obligated to repay $91.2 million of the Contract
Revenue Bonds. The Cities of Round Rock and Cedar Park, Texas are obligated to repay the remaining $90.8 million of the
Bonds. The interest rates on these Bonds are 2.6240/o to 5.084%.

The contract revenue bonds are payable from a pledge of the surplus revenues derived from the operation of the City's
combined Waterworks and Sewer System, after pa¡rrnent of all operation and maintenance expenses.

The annual requirements to retire contract revenue debt, including interest, as of September 30,2013, are as follows:

Principal Interest

Contract Revenue Debt Total
Requirements

2014

20r5
2016

2017

2018

2019-2023

2024-2028

2029-2033

2034-2038

1,000,000 $

1,500,000

1,850,000

2,175,000

2,290,000

13,390,000

17,295,000

22,335,000

28,845,000

4,272,361 $

4,243,721

4,197,3rr
4,136,197

4,059,975

18,850,793

15,537,709

10,834,316

4,549,417

5,272,361

5,743,721

6,047,311

6,311,197

6,349,975

32,240,793

32,832,709

33,169,316

33,394,417

$

90,680,000 $Total $

35
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CITY OF LEANDE& TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30,2013

Note 7: Long-term Debt - continued

Note Payable:

The City joined the Brushy Creek Regional Wastewater System in 2010. The Cities of Austin, Cedar Park, and Round Rock,
Texas have agreed to convey to the Cþ of Leander the reserved capacity in the system for the purchase price of
$10,800,000. The City shall pay the required payments in annual installments over a period of 22 years with the first
principal and interest paynent to occur on January 31, 2013. The interest that accrues prior to the fi¡st palmrent will be
included as principal and paid in accordance with the following maturity schedule:

Year Ending

September 30 Principal Interest
Total

Reouirements

Note Payable

20t4
20t5
20t6
2017

2018

20t9-2023
2024-2028

2029-2033
Total

439,199 $

452,375

465,947

479,925

494,323

2,703,t60
3,133,702

2,862,682

330,939 $

317,763

304,192

290,214

275,8t6
1,147,534

716,991

217,874

770,138

770,138

770,t39
770,139

770,139

3,950,694

3,850,693

3,080,556

$

$ 11,031,313 $ 3,60t,323 $ 14,632,636

Capital Leases

The City has acquired certain capital assets for governmental and business-t1pe activities through the use of lease purchase
agreements. These lease agreements qualifu as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at
the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.

Assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Assets
Govemmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities
251,103

(96,797)

$ 119,422 $ 154,306

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payrnents as of September 30, 2013,
are as follows:

Machinery and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total

Year Ended

September 30

$ 690,064 $
(s70,642)

Govemmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities

2014

2015
$ 3,004 $ 12,453

1,666

Total minimum lease payments

Less amount representing interest

Present value of minimum lease payments

3,004

(12)

14,llg

(3 13)

36
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Note 8: Retirement Plan

Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-taditional, joint contributory hybrid
defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system. The plan provisions that have been adopted by the City are within the options available in the
governing state statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available, comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS. The report also provides detailed explanations of the contributions, benefits, and
actuarial methods and assumptions used by the System. This report may be obtained from the TMRS web site at
www.TMRS.com.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City within the options available in the state statutes governing
TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

PlanYear2012 Plan Year 2013

Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each City is determined annually by the actuary, using the
Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service cost
contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate
finances the portion of an active member's projected benefit allocated annually. The prior service contribution rate amortizes
the unfunded actuarial liability over the applicable period for that City. Both the normal cost and prior service contribution
rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity
Increases.

The Cþ contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the City make monthly
contributions. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance forbudgetarypu{poses, there is a one-year delay
between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The
annual pension cost and net pension obligation are as follows:

Employee deposit rate

Matching ratio (city to employee)

Years required for vesting
Service retirement eligibility

(expressed as age I years ofservice)

Updated Service Credit

Annuity Increase (to retirees)

1A/t/o

2to I
5

60/5,0/20

I 00% Repeating, Transfers

70% of CP[Repeating

7%

2to1
5

6015,0120

1 00% Repeating, Transfèrs

70%o of CPI Repeating

l,l29,gg0
25,839

(22,701)

I,133,027
(1,062,819)

70,209

369 t2t

Annual required contribution (ARC)
Interest on Net Pension obligation
Adjustmentto ARC
Annual Pension Cost (expense)

Contributions made

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation
Net Pension Obligation - as of beginning of year
Net Pension Obligation - as of end of year

$

$

37

439,329



Note 8: Retirement Plan - continued

CITY OF LEANDE& TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30,2013

Trend Information
For

Year Ending
Annual

Pension Cost
Net Employer

Contribution
Percentage of

APC Contributed
Net Pension

9l30l20rr
9130120t2

9130/2013

$ 994,643 $

1,076,931

1,133,027

888,178

990,291

l,062,g19

89.3% $

92.0%

93.8%

282,481

369,121
439,329

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2013 were determined as part of the December 31,2010 and20ll actuarial
valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December 31,2012, also follows:

Valuation Date 1213!2010 t2l3ll20tt t2/3t/2012
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit

Amortization Method

GASB 25 Equivalent
S ingle Amort ization Period

Amortization Period for new
Gains/Losses

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions :

Investment Rate of Return*

Projected Salary Increases*
* Includes Inflation at

Cost-oÊliving Adjustrnents

Level Percent of Payroll

27.5 Years - Closed

Period

Level Percent of Payroll

26.6Years - Closed

Period

Level Percent of Payroll

25.5 Years - Closed

Period

30 years

10-year smoothed

Market

7.0%

Varies by age and

service

3.0%

2.1%

30 years

10-year smoothed

Market

7.0%

Varies by age and

service

3.0%

2.1%

30 years

lO-year smoothed

Market

7.0%

Varies by age and

service

3.0%

2.1%

Funded Status and Fundine Proeress

The funded status as of December 3l,20l2,the most recent actuarial valuation date, is presented as follows:

Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)

(B)

Untunded AAL
(UAAL)

Funded

Ratio
Covered
Payroll

UAAL as a

Percentage of
Covered

Payroll

(A) (A (D): (B) - (A) (E)

t2l3U20t0

r2l3U201l

r2l3u20t2

$ 8,546,238

10,253,804

12,197,646

$ 14,074,172

15,454,276

17,349,952

60.7%

663%

70j%

I 5,527,934 $ g,t60,7gg

5,200,472 9,591,463

5,152,306 g,962,15g

673%

60.6%

575%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far
into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each
valuation and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
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Note 8: Retirement Plan - continued

assets. The schedule of funding progress, presented in the above table, presents multi-year tend information about whether
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability of benefits.

Supplemental Death Benefits Fund

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group term life insurance plan operated by
the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF).The City elected,
by ordinance, to provide group term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may terminate
coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be
effective the following January 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump sum payment approximately equal to the employee's annual salary
(calculated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the l2-month period preceding the month of death). Retired
employees are insured for $7,500. This coverage is an "other postemployrnent benefit," or OPEB.

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial valuation. The rate is
equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that
adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year. The intent is not to pre-fund
retiree term life insurance during employees' entire careers. The City's contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended
2013,2012, and2011 were 512,296, $13,550, and$14,740, respectively, which equaled the required contribution each year.

Note 9: Commitments

Watcr S)¡stem Proiect

On March 2, 1998, the City entered into a wholesale potable water service agreement with Brazos River Authority (BRA)
and the Lower Colorado River Authority ("LCRA") acting together as the Brazos-Colorado Water Alliance (Alliance)
whereby the Alliance agreed to acquire, construct, extend, enlarge, improve, expand, and replace the Vy'ater System as
necessary to provide Leander on a wholesale basis potable water in an amount not to exceed 24,000 acre-feet annually. In
exchange for services provided by the Alliance, Leander was unconditionally obligated to pay certain capital charges incurred
by LCRA, regardless of whether or not Leander takes and uses ttre water provided under this contact.

These charges were to be considered operating expenses of læander's water works and sanitary sewer systems, as LCRA and
BRA intended to own and operate the Water System as capital improvements on behalf of Leander. Total charges paid in
fiscal year 2013 to LCRA under this contract totaled $2,216,457.

On January 5, 2012, the City purchased the Sandy Creek water treatment plant and related infrastructure from the LCRA.
Consequently, from this date forward, the only charges paid by the City to the LCRA are for raw water, both that actually
withdrawn and that remaining as stored under permit.

Brushy Creek Resional Vy'astewater System

In September 2009, the cities of Round Rock, Austin, and Cedar Park entered into a purchase agreement with the LCRA
wherein they agreed to buy the Brushy Creek Regional Wastewater System (BCRWWS) from the LCRA. The agreement
outlined the proportional share that each city would purchase of the wastewater collection and treatment system. On
December 8, 2009, the three cities purchased the BCRWWS assets and entered into a master contract for the financing,
construction, ownership, and operation of the BCRWV/S. The master contract provided for the terms and conditions by with
the cities would jointly own and operate the BCRWV/S.

In June 2010, the cities of Round Rocþ Austin, and Cedar Park sold a share of the BCRWWS assets for the collection system
to the City of Leander, and all parties entered into the amended and restated master contract for the financing, construction,
ownership, and operation of the Brushy Creek Regional Wastewater System. The joint venture agreement does not provide
an explicit contractual formula for outlining the City's claim to assets. It is deemed to be a joint venture with no equity
interest and, accordingly, no amounts are reported in the accompanying financial statements for equity interest.
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Note 9: Commitments - continued

The City has capitalized its portion of cost related to the Brushy Creek Regional Wastewater System. In June 2010, the City
purchased reserved capacity in the system components for the price of $10,800,000 which was financed with a note payable
to mature in fiscal year 2032. The BRA is confacted to provide operation of the system, for which each of the cities is
invoiced relative to their system usage. For the fiscal year ended Septernber 30, 2013, Leander's share of expenses for
operation of the regional facilities was $357,333.

Economic Development Agreement

The City has entered into an economic development agreement with a shopping center. Under the terms of the agreement, the
City refunds 50Yo of sales tax collections on sales made by the shopping center in the state of Texas. The shopping center
represents approximately 16.66% of the City's sales tax collections for the year ended Septernber 30,2013.

Construction Commitments

Outstanding construction commitments are as follows at September 30:

Governmental activities

CR 179

Mel Mathis Blvd

Old2243 West

County Glen Drainage

E Crystal Falls 28

Business-type activities

Hero Vy'ay \Vaterline

Crystal Falls EST

Raw Vy'ater Intake contingency

Award

Remaining

Commitment

$ 548,976

173,727

754,928

116,398

2,233,924

s 14,652,99t s 3,927,953

$ 4,168,681

5,412,628

776,304

2,061,454

$ 88,300

3,307,954

n/a- cost share

49,064

804,821

1,552,300

$

$ 3,396,254 $ 2,405,195

Note 10: Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, injuries to employees, and other claims of various natures. These risks are covered by commercial insurance
purchased from independent third parties and through Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML-IRp), a
public entity risk pool for the benefit of governmental units located within the state. TML-IRP is considered a selÊsustaining
risk pool that provides coverage for its members. The City's contributions to the Pool are limited to the amount of premiums
as calculated at the beginning of each fund year. Premiums reflect the claims experience to date of the City. The pool,s
liability is limited to the coverage that the City elects as stated in the Pool's Declarations of Coverage for that fund year. The
Cþ has had no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year, and claims have not exceeded coverage in
the last three years.

Note 11: Joint Venture

BrushI¡ Creek Reeional Utility Authority
The City entered into an agreement dated September 2, 2008 with the Cities of Round Rock and Cedar Park, Texas, along
with the Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority for the financing, consfuction, and operation of the BCRUA regional
water treatment and distribution project (BCRUA Project).
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Note 11: Joint Venture - continued

In July 2009, the BCRUA issued $182 million of Contract Revenue Bonds, which were purchased by the Texas Vy'ater
Development Board. These Bonds were issued to finance the Brushy Creek Regional Water Treatment and Distribution
Project in accordance with the bylaws of the BCRUA. The City is obligated to repay $91.2 million of these Bonds, which is
based on its reserved capacity of 47.22Yo. The Cities of Round Rock and Cedar Park, Texas are obligated to repay the
remaining $90.8 million of the Bonds. Separate financial statements of BCRUA can be obtained at 221 E. Main Street,
Round Rock, Texas 78664.

The City accounts for this partnership as a joint venture. The City's equity interest is calculated in accordance with the
agreement with BCRUA. The City shares in the operating results of this joint venture so the City adjusts its equity interest by
the amount of its participating share of the joint venture's change in net position. Condensed financial statements for
BCRUA are as follows:

Statement of Net Position
As of September30,2013

BCRUA
Leander's

Interest
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Invesûnents

Other current assets

Restricted investments

Deferred charges, net

Capital assets

Total Assets
74"1 74,575

199,946,138 94,944,664

$ 11,200,985

7,73g,ggl
459,676

26,208,772

770,872

153,566,942

$ 5,132,513

6,990,001

424,109

7,944,467

379,000

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Retainage payable

Accrued bond interest payable

Bonds payable

Total Liabilities

Operating revenues

Operating expenses

Other income

Change in Net Position

Net position, October 1,2012
Contribution of capital, net

Net position, September 30,2013

538,922

2,345,205

1,369,716

178,605,000

273,392

1,103,653

696,581

90,680,000
8,843 92,753,626

Net Position s 17,087,295 $ 2.191 ,039

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
Year Ended September 30,2013

BCRUA
Leander's

Interest

182.85

$ 995,692

13,250,299

2t2 108

(12,052,508)

18,441,816

10,697,997

s 417,465

6,243,393

76,304
(5,749,6t4)

2,997,955

4,942,697

$ 17,087

4t

,295 $ 2,lgl,03g
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Note 12: Prior Period Adjustments

Several prior period adjustments \Mere necessary during 2013 to properly account for the Cþ's participation in the BCRUA
Project. An adjustment was recorded to remove $91.2 million in intangible assets and related bonds payable from the Cþ's
books for the City's contractual share of BCRUA bonds. These assets and bonds are already recorded on BCRUA's books;
however, an adjustment of 52,997,955 was proposed to record the City's investment in the BCRUA joint venture,
representing the City's share of BCRUA's net position at October 1,2012. Since the BCRUA bonds were removed from the
City's books, the related accrued interest payable on these bonds was also removed, resulting in a $702,537 increase in net
position at October 1,2012.

The City's note payable for its reserved capacity in the Brushy Creek Regional Wastewater System includes interest expense
accrued in fiscal years 2011 and 2012. It was noted during the current year that the interest expense was not recognized as

accrued in the applicable fiscal years. As a result, net position in the utility fund was overstated by $657,720. A prior period
adjustment was made to reduce the utility fund net position by 5657,720 at October 1,2012 and increase the related note
payable. These adjustments as summarized as follows:

Utility Fund

Net position, as previously reported

Remove BCRUA capital assets

Remove BCRUA bonds payable

Record invesÍnent in BCRUA joint venture

Remove accrued interest payable

Record 2071/2012 accrued interest

on BCRWV/S note payable

$ 58,504,657

(91,180,000)

91,180,000

2,997,955

702,537

(657,720)

Net position, as restated, October 1,2012 $ 61,547,429

Note 13: SubsequentPronouncements

In March 2012, lhe GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This Statement
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows and inflows of resources, certain
items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows or inflows of resources, certain items
that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. This Statement reclassifies defened amounts upon refunding of debt as

deferred inflows or outflows and requires debt issuance costs to be expensed as incurred. The provisions of this Statement
are effective for periods beginning after Decemb er 15, 2012.

In June 2012,lhe GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Pensions, an amendment of GASB
Stqtement 27. This Statement requires govemments providing defined benefit pension plans to recognize their long-term
obligation for pension benefits as a liability on the statement of net position and to more comprehensively and comparably
measure the annual costs of pension benefits. This Statement will require the City to record a liability and expense equal to
their proportionate share of the collective net pension liability and expense for the TMRS plan. This Statement requires the
use of the entry age normal method to be used with each period's service cost determined as a level percentage of pay and
requires certain other changes to compute the pension liability and expense. This Statement also requires revised and new
note disclosures and required supplementary infonnation (RSI) to be reported by employers. The provisions of this Statement
are effective for periods beginning after June 15,2014.

The City will fully analyze the impact of these new Statements prior to the effective dates for the Statements listed above.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmaj or Governmental Funds
As of September 30,2013

Court
Security

Fund

Court
Technology

Fund

Parks
Dedication

Fund

Police
Special Revenue

Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

F[]ND BALANCES
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

$

$

28 664 $ 24,555 S 449,606 s
28,664 $ 24.555 _$___ltg@_ $

$ $ $

37,004
37,004

$

28,664 24,555
449,606 37,004

28,664 24,555 449,606 37,004

Toøl liabilities and fund balances $ 28,664 $ 24.555 s 449"606 $ 37,004



Police
Forfeitures

Fund

Fire
Rescue

Fund
TTRZ#I

Fund

Public
Arts
Fund

Step

Fund

$ 2,967 $ 41,853 s 86,432 $ 4,484 $ 3,207
$ 2,967 $ 41,853 $ 86,432 $

$ $ $ $

4.484 s 3.207

$

10,000

10,000

2,967 86,432
41,853 3,207

(5,516)
2,967 41,853 86,432 (s.516) 3,207

$ 2.967 s 41.853 $ 86,432 $ 4,484 $ 3.207
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crTY oF LEANDER, TEXAS
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Continued
As of September30,2013

CID/HRT
Fund

Hotel
Occupancy

Fund

Parks

Special Revenue

Fund

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Due to other funds

Toøl liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

$ 2,206 $ 473 S 6.868 $ 688,319

$ 2,206 $ 473 $ 6,868 $ 688,319

$ $ $ $555
2-50

5s5
250

10,000

805 10,805

2,206 473

6,063

145,297

531,670
6,063

(5,516)
2,206 473 6,063 677,514

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,206 $ 473 $ 6,868 $ 688,3 19
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30,2013

Court
Security

Fund

Court
Technology

Fund

Parks

Dedication
Fund

Police
Special Revenue

Fund
REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses, permits and fees

Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services

Contributions
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITTJRES
Curent

General govemment
Public safety
Parks and recreation

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Proceeds from the sale ofassets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing
sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

$$$ $

367,778

ll,l79

13

14,904

8

38

140

16,105

t4
1l 192 14,912 367,956 l6,l l9

6,130 8,054 1,225

4,527
60,1 l9

6,130 8,0s4 64,646 1,225

5,062 6,8s8 303.310 14,894

OTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

100,000

100,000

5,062

23,602

6,858

17,697

403,310

46,296

14,gg4

22,110

$ 37,004$ 28.664 _$_ 21tff_ s 449,606



Police
Forfeitures

Fund

Fire
Rescue

Fund
TIRZ #I

Fund

Public
Arts
Fund

Step

Fund

$$

2

$ $ 186,712 $

190

16,636

t7

98,451

26

752

2

2 16,653 98,477 186,902 7s4

9,336
550 2,429 46,798

2,677

550 2,429 46 798 9,336 2,677

(s48) 14,224 51,679 177,566 (t,923)

(420,000)

(420,000)

(s48)

3,515

14,224

27,629

51,679

34 753

(242,434)

236,919

(1,923)

5,130

$ 2.967 $ 41,853 $ 86.432 ($ 5.s 16) $ 3,207
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30,2013

CID/HRT
Fr¡nd

Hotel
Occupancy

Fund

Parks

Special Revenue
Fund

Total Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

REVENUES
Taxes

Licenses, permits and fees

Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services

Contributions
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITTJRES
Current

General government
Public safety

Parks and recreation
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Proceeds from the sale of assets

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing
sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

$$ $

28,405

186,712

367,778
9,595

124,534
61,146

790
415

$

9,595

1 2

9,596 28,407 750,970

9,634

22,344

18,970

65,186
29,548
60 119

9,634 22,344 173,823

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

OTHER FTNANCTNG SOTTRCES (USES)

(38) 6,063 s77 147

2,209 2,209
100,000

(420,000)

2.209 (3t7,791)

2,171

35 473

6,063 259,356

418,158

$ 2.206 _$_____473_ $ 6,063 $ 677.514
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Confol over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance v,ttth Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Leander, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standa¡ds generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmãfi Auditng Siqndards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-t1pe activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Leander, Texas (the City), as oi-and for the year endeå August 31,
2013, arñ' the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated February ll, 2014.

Internal Control Over tr'inancial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal controlexists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal conkol, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on
a timely basis. A signiJìcant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contol that is less severe
than a material weaknesso yet imporønt enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal confiol was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contol that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given
these limiøtions, during our audit we did not identifu any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. Howcver, material wealmesses may exist that have not been identifed.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with cert¿in provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Stqndards in considering the City's internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ð¿,',) r6b^¿ r (3, Pc
Certifi ed Public Accountants

Abilene, Texas
February 11,2014
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Leander, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Leander, Texas', (the CiÐ compliance with the t¡pes of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City's major
federal programs for the year ended September 30,2013. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summaryof
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cãsts-.

Møn øgem ent's Resp o nsíb ílíty

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, conûacts, and grants applicable to its
federal prografirs.

Aa díto r's Re sp o nsíb ítíty

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs based on our audit of
the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United St¿tes of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Støndards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occuned. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the city's compliance.

Opínion on Each Møjor Federøl Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal confol over compliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing o¡r audit of compliance, wè considered the
City's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for eaoh major federal program and to test and report on internal co-nfol over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingl¡ we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemal
conûol over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a doficiency, or cornbination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Ð¿*d,("h^¿ r (3, Pc
Certified Public Accountants

Abilene, Texas
February ll,2014
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Grantor/Program Title

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30,2013

CFDA
Number Grant Number

Federal
Expenditures

U. S. Departrnent of Transportation:
Passed Through Texas Department of Transportation:
Federal Highway Administration :

Highway Planning and Construction
STP Metropolitan Mobility Project

Total Departrnent of Transportation

U.S. Department of Homeland Securitv:
Direct:
Federal Emergency Management Agency

Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program:
Staffing for Adequate FireÆmergency Response

Passed through Texas Department of Public Safety
Division of Emergency Management:
Fire Management Assistance Grant 97.046

Total Passed through Texas Department of Public Safety

Total Department of Homeland Security

Total Federal Awards

20.205 CSJ 0914-05-149 $ 4,030,000

4,030,000

97.083 EMW-2012-FH-00246 90,207

FM2922,2949,2963 187,275
187,275

277,482

s 4,307/82
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CITY OF LEANDE& TEXAS
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30,2013

Note 1: Reporting Entity

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ("Schedule") presents the activity of all applicable federal awards
of the City. The City's reporting entity is defined in Note 1 of the basic financial statements. Federal awards passed
through other governmental agencies are included on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Note 2: Basis of Accounting

The Schedule is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The modified accrual basis of accounting is
described in Note 1 of the basic financial statements. Federal grants are considered to be earned to the extent of
expenditures made under the provisions of the grant, and accordingly, when such funds are received, they are
recorded as deferred revenue until earned.

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
Støtes, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial st¿tements.

Note 3: Relationship to Federal Financial Reports

The information included in the Schedule may not fully agree with other federal award reports that the City submits
to granting agencies because, among other reasons, the award reports may be prepared for a different fiscal period
and may include cumulative (from prior years) data rather than data for the current year only.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30,2013

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

l. Tlpe of auditor's report issued on the financial statements: Unmodified

2. No significant deficiencies required to be reported in this schedule were disclosed in the audit of the financial
statements.

3. Noncompliance which is material to the fìnancial statements: None

4. No significant deficiencies required to be reported in this schedule were disclosed in the audit of the major
programs.

5. Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

6. Did the audit disclose findings which are required to be reported under Sec. 510(a): No

7. Majorprograms include:
CFDA 20.205 Highway Planning and Construction

8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between T1,pe A and Type B programs: $300,000

9. Low risk auditee: No

B. Findings Related to the Financial Statements

None

C. Findings and Questioned Costs Related to the Federal Award Programs

None
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crTY oF'LEANDE& TEXAS
Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30,2013

A Single Audit was not required in the prior year
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